

# JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

First Regular Session, 101st GENERAL ASSEMBLY

THIRTY-FIFTH DAY, MONDAY, MARCH 8, 2021

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

Speaker Vescovo in the Chair.

Prayer by Representative Aaron Griesheimer.

Heavenly Father,

As we gather this week, we pray that You be with us. Right now, we gather together to give You thanks and praise. Fill our hearts with compassion, our minds with understanding and our souls with courage.

We ask all this in Jesus's name, "Amen!"

The Pledge of Allegiance to the flag was recited.

The Journal of the thirty-fourth day was approved as printed.

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following Senate Bills were read the second time:

**SS SB 22**, relating to tax increment financing.

**SS SCS SB 27**, relating to political subdivisions, with existing penalty provisions.

**SB 38**, relating to electric bicycles, with penalty provisions.

**SS SB 89**, relating to motor clubs, with existing penalty provisions.

## PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS

**HCS HB 529, HCS HB 556, HCS HB 577, HB 624, HCS HB 685, HB 767, HB 92, HB 151, HB 158, HB 177, HB 201, HB 202, HB 295, HCS HB 306, HB 380, HB 491, HCS HB 583, HB 660, HB 678, HCS HB 782, HB 920, HB 948, HCS HB 307, HB 316, HB 333, HCS HB 384, HB 530 and HCS HB 592** were moved to the Informal Calendar.

**HB 701**, relating to retirement systems, was taken up by Representative Black (7).

On motion of Representative Black (7), the title of **HB 701** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Black (7), **HB 701** was ordered perfected and printed.

### PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS - INFORMAL

**HB 624**, relating to early high school graduation, was taken up by Representative Richey.

Representative Richey moved that the title of **HB 624** be agreed to.

Representative Christofanelli offered **House Amendment No. 1**.

#### *House Amendment No. 1*

AMEND House Bill No. 624, Page 1, In The Title, Lines 1-2, by deleting the phrase "early high school graduation" and inserting in lieu thereof the phrase "educational opportunities"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Christofanelli, **House Amendment No. 1** was adopted.

Representative Christofanelli offered **House Amendment No. 2**.

#### *House Amendment No. 2*

AMEND House Bill No. 624, Page 5, Section 161.385, Line 66, by inserting immediately after said section and line the following:

"166.400. Sections 166.400 to 166.455 shall be known and may be cited as the "Missouri Education ~~[Savings]~~ Program".

166.410. ~~[Definitions.]~~ As used in sections 166.400 to 166.455, except where the context clearly requires another interpretation, the following terms mean:

- (1) "Beneficiary", any individual designated by a participation agreement to benefit from payments for qualified education expenses at an eligible educational institution;
- (2) "Benefits", the payment of qualified education expenses on behalf of a beneficiary from a savings account during the beneficiary's attendance at an eligible educational institution;
- (3) "Board", the Missouri education ~~[savings]~~ program board established in section 166.415;
- (4) "Eligible educational institution", an ~~[institution of postsecondary education]~~ **eligible educational institution** as defined in Section ~~[529(e)(5)]~~ **529** of the Internal Revenue Code, ~~[and institutions of elementary and secondary education as provided in Sections 529(e)(7) and 529(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.]~~ as amended;
- (5) "Financial institution", a bank, insurance company or registered investment company;
- (6) "Internal Revenue Code", the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;
- (7) "Missouri education ~~[savings]~~ program" or "~~[savings]~~ program", the program created pursuant to sections 166.400 to 166.455;
- (8) "Participant", a person who has entered into a participation agreement pursuant to sections 166.400 to 166.455 for the advance payment of qualified education expenses on behalf of a beneficiary;
- (9) "Participation agreement", an agreement between a participant and the board pursuant to and conforming with the requirements of sections 166.400 to 166.455; and
- (10) "Qualified higher education expenses" or "qualified education expenses", the qualified costs of tuition and fees and other expenses for attendance at an eligible educational institution, as defined in Section ~~[529(e)(3)]~~ **529** of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended.

166.415. 1. There is hereby created the "Missouri Education [Savings] Program". The program shall be administered by the Missouri education [savings] program board which shall consist of the Missouri state treasurer who shall serve as chairman, the commissioner of the department of higher education and workforce development, the commissioner of education, the commissioner of the office of administration, the director of the department of economic development, two persons having demonstrable experience and knowledge in the areas of finance or the investment and management of public funds, one of whom is selected by the president pro tem of the senate and one of whom is selected by the speaker of the house of representatives, and one person having demonstrable experience and knowledge in the area of banking or deposit rate determination and placement of depository certificates of deposit or other deposit investments. Such member shall be appointed by the governor with the advice and consent of the senate. The three appointed members shall be appointed to serve for terms of four years from the date of appointment, or until their successors shall have been appointed and shall have qualified. The members of the board shall be subject to the conflict of interest provisions of section 105.452. Any member who violates the conflict of interest provisions shall be removed from the board. In order to establish and administer the [savings] program, the board, in addition to its other powers and authority, shall have the power and authority to:

(1) Develop and implement the Missouri education [savings] program and, notwithstanding any provision of sections 166.400 to 166.455 to the contrary, the [savings] programs and services consistent with the purposes and objectives of sections 166.400 to 166.455;

(2) Promulgate reasonable rules and regulations and establish policies and procedures to implement sections 166.400 to 166.455, to permit the [savings] program to qualify as a "qualified state tuition program" pursuant to Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code and to ensure the [savings] program's compliance with all applicable laws;

(3) Develop and implement educational programs and related informational materials for participants, either directly or through a contractual arrangement with a financial institution for investment services, and their families, including special programs and materials to inform families with young children regarding methods for financing education and training;

(4) Enter into agreements with any financial institution, the state or any federal or other agency or entity as required for the operation of the [savings] program pursuant to sections 166.400 to 166.455;

(5) Enter into participation agreements with participants;

(6) Accept any grants, gifts, legislative appropriations, and other moneys from the state, any unit of federal, state, or local government or any other person, firm, partnership, or corporation for deposit to the account of the [savings] program;

(7) Invest the funds received from participants in appropriate investment instruments to achieve long-term total return through a combination of capital appreciation and current income;

(8) Make appropriate payments and distributions on behalf of beneficiaries pursuant to participation agreements;

(9) Make refunds to participants upon the termination of participation agreements pursuant to the provisions, limitations, and restrictions set forth in sections 166.400 to 166.455 and the rules adopted by the board;

(10) Make provision for the payment of costs of administration and operation of the [savings] program;

(11) Effectuate and carry out all the powers granted by sections 166.400 to 166.455, and have all other powers necessary to carry out and effectuate the purposes, objectives and provisions of sections 166.400 to 166.455 pertaining to the [savings] program; and

(12) Procure insurance, guarantees or other protections against any loss in connection with the assets or activities of the [savings] program.

2. Any member of the board may designate a proxy for that member who will enjoy the full voting privileges of that member for the one meeting so specified by that member. No more than three proxies shall be considered members of the board for the purpose of establishing a quorum.

3. Four members of the board shall constitute a quorum. No vacancy in the membership of the board shall impair the right of a quorum to exercise all the rights and perform all the duties of the board. No action shall be taken by the board except upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present.

4. The board shall meet within the state of Missouri at the time set at a previously scheduled meeting or by the request of any four members of the board. Notice of the meeting shall be delivered to all other trustees in person or by depositing notice in a United States post office in a properly stamped and addressed envelope not less than six days prior to the date fixed for the meeting. The board may meet at any time by unanimous mutual consent. There shall be at least one meeting in each quarter.

5. The funds shall be invested only in those investments which a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with these matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, as provided in section 105.688. For new contracts entered into after August 28, 2012, board members shall study investment plans of other states and contract with or negotiate to provide benefit options the same as or similar to other states' qualified plans for the purpose of offering additional options for members of the plan. The board may delegate to duly appointed investment counselors authority to act in place of the board in the investment and reinvestment of all or part of the moneys and may also delegate to such counselors the authority to act in place of the board in the holding, purchasing, selling, assigning, transferring or disposing of any or all of the securities and investments in which such moneys shall have been invested, as well as the proceeds of such investments and such moneys. Such investment counselors shall be registered as investment advisors with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. In exercising or delegating its investment powers and authority, members of the board shall exercise ordinary business care and prudence under the facts and circumstances prevailing at the time of the action or decision. No member of the board shall be liable for any action taken or omitted with respect to the exercise of, or delegation of, these powers and authority if such member shall have discharged the duties of ~~his or her~~ **the member's** position in good faith and with that degree of diligence, care and skill which a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with these matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims.

6. No investment transaction authorized by the board shall be handled by any company or firm in which a member of the board has a substantial interest, nor shall any member of the board profit directly or indirectly from any such investment.

7. No trustee or employee of the ~~savings~~ program shall receive any gain or profit from any funds or transaction of the ~~savings~~ program. Any trustee, employee or agent of the ~~savings~~ program accepting any gratuity or compensation for the purpose of influencing such trustee's, employee's or agent's action with respect to the investment or management of the funds of the ~~savings~~ program shall thereby forfeit the office and in addition thereto be subject to the penalties prescribed for bribery.

166.420. 1. The board may enter into ~~savings~~ program participation agreements with participants on behalf of beneficiaries pursuant to the provisions of sections 166.400 to 166.455, including the following terms and conditions:

(1) A participation agreement shall stipulate the terms and conditions of the ~~savings~~ program in which the participant makes contributions;

(2) A participation agreement shall specify the method for calculating the return on the contribution made by the participant;

(3) The execution of a participation agreement by the board shall not guarantee that the beneficiary named in any participation agreement will be admitted to an eligible educational institution, be allowed to continue to attend an eligible educational institution after having been admitted or will graduate from an eligible educational institution;

(4) A participation agreement shall clearly and prominently disclose to participants the risk associated with depositing moneys with the board;

(5) Participation agreements shall be organized and presented in a way and with language that is easily understandable by the general public; and

(6) A participation agreement shall clearly and prominently disclose to participants the existence of any load charge or similar charge assessed against the accounts of the participants for administration or services.

2. The board shall establish the maximum amount ~~which~~ **that** may be contributed annually ~~by a participant~~ with respect to a beneficiary.

3. The board shall establish a total contribution limit for savings accounts established under the ~~savings~~ program with respect to a beneficiary to permit the ~~savings~~ program to qualify as a "qualified state tuition program" pursuant to Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code. No contribution may be made to a savings account for a beneficiary if it would cause the balance of all savings accounts of the beneficiary to exceed the total contribution limit established by the board. The board may establish other requirements that it deems appropriate to provide adequate safeguards to prevent contributions on behalf of a beneficiary from exceeding what is necessary to provide for the qualified education expenses of the beneficiary.

4. The board shall establish the minimum length of time that contributions and earnings must be held by the ~~savings~~ program to qualify pursuant to section 166.435. Any contributions or earnings that are withdrawn or distributed from a savings account prior to the expiration of the minimum length of time, as established by the board, shall be subject to a penalty pursuant to section 166.430.

166.425. All money paid by a participant in connection with participation agreements shall be deposited as received and shall be promptly invested by the board. Contributions and earnings thereon accumulated on behalf of participants in the [savings] program may be used, as provided in the participation agreement, for qualified education expenses. Such contributions and earnings shall not be considered income for purposes of determining a participant's eligibility for financial assistance under any state student aid program.

166.435. 1. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the assets of the [savings] program held by the board, the assets of any deposit program authorized in section 166.500, and the assets of any qualified tuition [savings] program established pursuant to Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code and any income therefrom shall be exempt from all taxation by the state or any of its political subdivisions. Income earned or received from the [savings] program, deposit, or other qualified tuition [savings] programs established under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code, or refunds of qualified education expenses received by a beneficiary from an eligible educational institution in connection with withdrawal from enrollment at such institution which are contributed within sixty days of withdrawal to a qualified tuition [savings] program of which such individual is a beneficiary shall not be subject to state income tax imposed pursuant to chapter 143 and shall be eligible for any benefits provided in accordance with Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code. The exemption from taxation pursuant to this section shall apply only to assets and income maintained, accrued, or expended pursuant to the requirements of the [savings] program established pursuant to sections 166.400 to 166.455, the deposit program established pursuant to sections 166.500 to 166.529, and other qualified tuition [savings] programs established under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code, and no exemption shall apply to assets and income expended for any other purposes. Annual contributions made to the [savings] program held by the board, the deposit program, and any qualified tuition [savings] program established under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code up to and including eight thousand dollars per [participating] taxpayer, and up to sixteen thousand dollars for married individuals filing a joint tax return, shall be subtracted in determining Missouri adjusted gross income pursuant to section 143.121.

2. If any deductible contributions to or earnings from any such program referred to in this section are distributed and not used to pay qualified education expenses, not transferred as allowed by 26 U.S.C. Section 529(c)(3)(C)(i), as amended, and any Internal Revenue Service regulations or guidance issued in relation thereto, or are not held for the minimum length of time established by the appropriate Missouri board, then the amount so distributed shall be included in the Missouri adjusted gross income of the participant, or, if the participant is not living, the beneficiary.

3. The provisions of this section shall apply to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2008, and the provisions of this section with regard to sections 166.500 to 166.529 shall apply to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2004.

166.440. The assets of the [savings] program shall at all times be preserved, invested and expended only for the purposes set forth in this section and in accordance with the participation agreements, and no property rights therein shall exist in favor of the state.

166.456. All personally identifiable information concerning participants and beneficiaries of accounts established within the Missouri education [savings] program pursuant to sections 166.400 to 166.456 shall be confidential, and any disclosure of such information shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the administration of the program.

166.502. As used in sections 166.500 to 166.529, except where the context clearly requires another interpretation, the following terms mean:

- (1) "Beneficiary", any individual designated by a participation agreement to benefit from payments for qualified higher education expenses at an eligible educational institution;
- (2) "Benefits", the payment of qualified higher education expenses on behalf of a beneficiary from a deposit account during the beneficiary's attendance at an eligible educational institution;
- (3) "Board", the Missouri education [savings] program board established in section 166.415;
- (4) "Eligible educational institution", an institution of postsecondary education as defined in Section 529(e)(5) of the Internal Revenue Code;
- (5) "Financial institution", a depository institution and any intermediary that brokers certificates of deposits;
- (6) "Internal Revenue Code", the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;
- (7) "Missouri higher education deposit program" or "deposit program", the program created pursuant to sections 166.500 to 166.529;
- (8) "Participant", a person who has entered into a participation agreement pursuant to sections 166.500 to 166.529 for the advance payment of qualified higher education expenses on behalf of a beneficiary;

(9) "Participation agreement", an agreement between a participant and the board pursuant to and conforming with the requirements of sections 166.500 to 166.529;

(10) "Qualified higher education expenses", the qualified costs of tuition and fees and other expenses for attendance at an eligible educational institution, as defined in Section 529(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

209.610. 1. The board may enter into ABLE program participation agreements with participants on behalf of designated beneficiaries pursuant to the provisions of sections 209.600 to 209.645, including the following terms and conditions:

(1) A participation agreement shall stipulate the terms and conditions of the ABLE program in which the participant makes contributions;

(2) A participation agreement shall specify the method for calculating the return on the contribution made by the participant;

(3) A participation agreement shall clearly and prominently disclose to participants the risk associated with depositing moneys with the board;

(4) Participation agreements shall be organized and presented in a way and with language that is easily understandable by the general public; and

(5) A participation agreement shall clearly and prominently disclose to participants the existence of any load charge or similar charge assessed against the accounts of the participants for administration or services.

2. The board shall establish the maximum amount of contributions which may be made annually to an ABLE account, which shall be the same as the amount allowed by 26 U.S.C. Section 529A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

3. The board shall establish a total contribution limit for savings accounts established under the ABLE program with respect to a designated beneficiary which shall in no event be less than the amount established as the contribution limit by the Missouri education [savings] program board for qualified tuition [savings] programs established under sections 166.400 to 166.450. No contribution shall be made to an ABLE account for a designated beneficiary if it would cause the balance of the ABLE account of the designated beneficiary to exceed the total contribution limit established by the board. The board may establish other requirements that it deems appropriate to provide adequate safeguards to prevent contributions on behalf of a designated beneficiary from exceeding what is necessary to provide for the qualified disability expenses of the designated beneficiary.

4. The board shall establish the minimum length of time that contributions and earnings must be held by the ABLE program to qualify as tax exempt pursuant to section 209.625. Any contributions or earnings that are withdrawn or distributed from an ABLE account prior to the expiration of the minimum length of time, as established by the board, shall be subject to a penalty pursuant to section 209.620."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

## Representative Fitzwater offered **House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 2.**

### *House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 2*

AMEND House Amendment No. 2 to House Bill No. 624, Page 1, Line 1, by inserting after the number "624," the following:

"Page 3, Section 160.560, Line 69, by inserting after all of said section and line the following:

"160.2700. For purposes of sections 160.2700 to 160.2725, "adult high school" means a school that:

(1) Is for individuals who do not have a high school diploma and who are twenty-one years of age or older;

(2) Offers an industry certification program or programs and a high school diploma in a manner that allows students to earn a diploma at the same time that they earn an industry certification;

(3) Offers ~~on-site~~ child care for children of enrolled students attending the school; and

(4) Is not eligible to receive funding under section 160.415 or 163.031.

160.2705. 1. The department of elementary and secondary education shall authorize before January 1, 2018, a Missouri-based nonprofit organization meeting the criteria under subsection 2 of this section to establish and operate four adult high schools, with:

- (1) One adult high school to be located in a city not within a county;
- (2) One adult high school to be located in a county of the third classification without a township form of government and with more than forty-one thousand but fewer than forty-five thousand inhabitants or a county contiguous to that county;
- (3) One adult high school to be located in a county of the first classification with more than two hundred sixty thousand but fewer than three hundred thousand inhabitants or a county contiguous to that county; and
- (4) One adult high school to be located in a county of the first classification with more than one hundred fifty thousand but fewer than two hundred thousand inhabitants.

2. The department of elementary and secondary education shall grant the authorization described under subsection 1 of this section based on a bid process conducted in accordance with the rules and regulations governing purchasing through the office of administration. The successful bidder shall:

- (1) Demonstrate the ability to establish, within twenty-one months of the receipt of the authorization, four adult high schools offering high school diplomas, an industry certification program or programs, and ~~on-site~~ child care for children of the students attending the high schools;
- (2) Commit at least two million dollars in investment for the purpose of establishing the necessary infrastructure to operate four adult high schools;
- (3) Demonstrate substantial and positive experience in providing services, including industry certifications and job placement services, to adults twenty-one years of age or older whose educational and training opportunities have been limited by educational disadvantages, disabilities, homelessness, criminal history, or similar circumstances;
- (4) Establish a partnership with a state-supported postsecondary education institution or more than one such partnership, if a partnership or partnerships are necessary in order to meet the requirements for an adult high school;
- (5) Establish a comprehensive plan that sets forth how the adult high schools will help address the need for a sufficiently trained workforce in the surrounding region for each adult high school;
- (6) Establish partnerships and strategies for engaging the community and business leaders in carrying out the goals of each adult high school;
- (7) Establish the ability to meet quality standards through certified teachers and programs that support each student in his or her goal to find a more rewarding job;
- (8) Establish a plan for assisting students in overcoming barriers to educational success including, but not limited to, educational disadvantages, homelessness, criminal history, disability, including learning disability such as dyslexia, and similar circumstances;
- (9) Establish a process for determining outcomes of the adult high school, including outcomes related to a student's ability to find a more rewarding job through the attainment of a high school diploma and job training and certification; and
- (10) Bids shall not include an administrative fee greater than ten percent.

3. (1) The department of elementary and secondary education shall establish academic requirements for students to obtain high school diplomas.

(2) Requirements for a high school diploma shall be based on an adult student's prior high school achievement and the remaining credits and coursework that would be necessary for the student to receive a high school diploma if he or she were in a traditional high school setting. The adult student shall meet the requirements with the same level of academic rigor as would otherwise be necessary to attain such credits.

(3) The adult high school authorized under this section shall award high school diplomas to students who successfully meet the established academic requirements. The adult high school authorized under this section shall confer the diploma as though the student earned the diploma at a traditional high school. The diploma shall have no differentiating marks, titles, or other symbols.

(4) Students at adult high schools may complete required coursework at their own pace and as available through the adult high school. They shall not be required to satisfy any specific number of class minutes. The adult high school may also make classes available to students online as may be appropriate. However, students shall not complete the majority of instruction of the school's curriculum online or through remote instruction. **For the purposes of this subsection, synchronous instruction connecting students to a live class conducted in a Missouri adult high school shall be treated the same as in-person instruction.**

(5) The department of elementary and secondary education shall not create additional regulations or burdens on the adult high school or the students attending the adult high schools beyond certifying necessary credits and ensuring that students have sufficiently mastered the subject matter to make them eligible for credit.

**4. An adult high school shall be deemed a "secondary school system" for the purposes subdivision (15) of subsection 1 of section 210.211.**"; and

Further amend said bill,"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Fitzwater, **House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 2** was adopted.

Representative Windham offered **House Amendment No. 2 to House Amendment No. 2**.

*House Amendment No. 2*  
*to*  
*House Amendment No. 2*

AMEND House Amendment No. 2 to House Bill No. 624, Page 5, Line 34, by inserting after all of said line the following:

"173.250. 1. There is hereby established a "Higher Education Academic Scholarship Program" and any moneys appropriated by the general assembly for this program shall be used to provide scholarships for Missouri citizens to attend a Missouri college or university of their choice pursuant to the provisions of this section.

2. The definitions of terms set forth in section 173.1102 shall be applicable to such terms as used in this section. In addition, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) "Academic scholarship", an amount of money paid by the state of Missouri to a student pursuant to the provisions of this section;

(2) "ACT", the American College Testing program examination;

(3) "Approved institution", an approved public or approved private institution as defined in section 173.1102;

(4) "Eligible student", an individual who meets the criteria set forth in section 173.1104, excluding the requirements of financial need and undergraduate status and, in addition, meets the following requirements:

(a) Has achieved a qualifying score on the ACT or SAT;

(b) Is a Missouri resident who has completed secondary coursework through graduation from high school or the virtual public school established in section 161.670, receipt of a general education development (GED) diploma, completion of a program of study through homeschooling or any other program of academic instruction that satisfies the compulsory attendance requirement under section 167.031; ~~and~~

(c) Is enrolled full time or accepted for full-time enrollment as a postsecondary student at an approved institution during the academic year immediately following the completion of ~~his or her~~ **the individual's** secondary coursework; **and**

**(d) For all academic years beginning on or after July 1, 2022, meets the following additional requirements:**

**a. Graduated from high school with an overall grade point average of at least two and three-fourths on a four-point scale, or the equivalent on another scale;**

**b. Performed at least fifty hours of unpaid tutoring or mentoring, of which up to twenty-five percent may include job shadowing, prior to high school graduation; and**

**c. Maintains eligibility by completing a minimum of ninety percent of the clock hours required for the federal payment period for students enrolled full time in an eligible clock hour program;**

(5) "Missouri test-takers", all Missouri high school seniors who take the ACT or the SAT;

(6) "Qualifying score", a composite score on the ACT or the SAT achieved in an eligible student's high school sophomore, junior, or senior year that is in the top five percent of Missouri test-takers, as established at the beginning of an eligible student's final year of secondary coursework;

(7) "Recipient", an eligible or renewal student who receives an academic scholarship pursuant to this section;

(8) "Renewal student", an eligible student who remains in compliance with the provisions of section 173.1104, maintains continuous enrollment, and makes satisfactory academic degree progress; and

(9) "SAT", the Scholastic Aptitude Test.

3. The coordinating board for higher education shall be the administrative agency for the implementation of the program established by this section, and shall:

(1) Promulgate reasonable rules and regulations for the exercise of its functions and the effectuation of the purposes of this section, including regulations for granting scholarship deferments;

(2) Prescribe the form and the time and method of awarding academic scholarships, and shall supervise the processing thereof; and

(3) Select qualified recipients to receive academic scholarships, make such awards of academic scholarships to qualified recipients and determine the manner and method of payment to the recipient.

4. Eligible students shall be offered academic scholarships in the following amounts and in the following order of priority, within the limits of the funds appropriated and made available:

(1) Each eligible student with a qualifying score in the top three percent of all Missouri test-takers shall be offered an academic scholarship of up to three thousand dollars per year. All students in the top three percent shall receive awards of three thousand dollars before any student in the top fourth and fifth percentiles receives any award;

(2) Provided sufficient funds are appropriated, each eligible student with a qualifying score in the top fourth and fifth percentiles shall be offered an academic scholarship of up to one thousand dollars per year.

5. Eligible students may renew academic scholarships for their second, third, and fourth years of postsecondary education, or as long as the recipient is in compliance with the criteria to be a renewal student.

6. If an eligible student is unable to enroll during the first academic year or a renewal student ceases attendance at an approved institution for the purpose of providing service to a nonprofit organization, a state or federal government agency, or any branch of the Armed Forces of the United States, such student shall be offered an academic scholarship upon enrollment in any approved institution after the completion of their service, if the student meets all other requirements for an initial or renewal award and if the following criteria are met:

(1) For an eligible student who cannot attend an approved institution as a result of service to a nonprofit organization or the state or federal government, the student returns to full-time status within twenty-seven months and provides verification to the coordinating board for higher education that the service to the nonprofit organization was satisfactorily completed and was not compensated other than for expenses, or that the service to the state or federal government was satisfactorily completed; or

(2) For an eligible student who cannot attend an approved institution as a result of military service in the Armed Forces of the United States, the student returns to full-time status within six months after the eligible student first ceases service to the Armed Forces and provides verification to the coordinating board for higher education that the military service was satisfactorily completed.

7. A recipient of an academic scholarship awarded under this section may transfer from one approved institution to another without losing eligibility for the academic scholarship.

8. If a recipient of an academic scholarship at any time withdraws from an approved institution so that under the rules and regulations of that institution ~~he or she~~ **the recipient** is entitled to a refund of any tuition, fees or other charges, the institution shall pay the portion of the refund attributable to the academic scholarship for that term to the coordinating board for higher education.

9. Other provisions of this section to the contrary notwithstanding, if an eligible student has been awarded an initial academic scholarship pursuant to the provisions of this section but is unable to attend an approved institution during the first academic year because of illness, disability, pregnancy or other medical need or if a renewal student ceases all attendance at an approved institution because of illness, disability, pregnancy or other medical need, the recipient shall be eligible for an initial or renewal academic scholarship upon enrollment in or return to any approved institution, provided the recipient:

(1) Enrolls in or returns to full-time status within twenty-seven months;

(2) Provides verification in compliance with coordinating board for higher education rules of sufficient medical evidence documenting an illness, disability, pregnancy or other medical need of such person to require that that person will not be able to use the academic scholarship during the time period for which it was originally offered; and

(3) Meets all other requirements established for eligibility to receive an academic scholarship."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

Representative Windham moved that **House Amendment No. 2 to House Amendment No. 2** be adopted.

Which motion was defeated.

On motion of Representative Christofanelli, **House Amendment No. 2, as amended**, was adopted.

On motion of Representative Richey, **HB 624, as amended**, was ordered perfected and printed.

**HCS HB 685**, relating to certain public offices, was taken up by Representative Chipman.

On motion of Representative Chipman, the title of **HCS HB 685** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Chipman, **HCS HB 685** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Chipman, **HCS HB 685** was ordered perfected and printed.

**HB 660**, relating to special license plates for Boy Scouts of America, was taken up by Representative O'Donnell.

On motion of Representative O'Donnell, the title of **HB 660** was agreed to.

Representative Taylor (139) assumed the Chair.

On motion of Representative O'Donnell, **HB 660** was ordered perfected and printed.

#### **PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS**

**HCS HB 733**, relating to the workforce diploma program, was placed on the Informal Calendar.

**HCS HB 811**, relating to teacher and school employee retirement systems, was taken up by Representative Black (7).

On motion of Representative Black (7), the title of **HCS HB 811** was agreed to.

Representative Black (7) offered **House Amendment No. 1**.

*House Amendment No. 1*

AMEND House Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 811, Page 3, Section 169.560, Line 58, by inserting after all of said line the following:

"169.596. 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter to the contrary, a retired certificated teacher receiving a retirement benefit from the retirement system established pursuant to sections 169.010 to 169.141 may, without losing his or her retirement benefit, teach full time for up to ~~two~~ **four** years for a school district covered by such retirement system; provided that the school district has a shortage of certified teachers, as determined by the school district, and provided that no such retired certificated teacher shall be employed as a superintendent. The total number of such retired certificated teachers shall not exceed, at any one time, the lesser of ten percent of the total teacher staff for that school district, or five certificated teachers.

2. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter to the contrary, a person receiving a retirement benefit from the retirement system established pursuant to sections 169.600 to 169.715 may, without losing his or her retirement benefit, be employed full time for up to ~~two~~ **four** years for a school district covered by such retirement system; provided that the school district has a shortage of noncertificated employees, as determined by the school district. The total number of such retired noncertificated employees shall not exceed, at any one time, the lesser of ten percent of the total noncertificated staff for that school district, or five employees.

3. The employer's contribution rate shall be paid by the hiring school district.

4. In order to hire teachers and noncertificated employees pursuant to the provisions of this section, the school district shall:

- (1) Show a good faith effort to fill positions with nonretired certificated teachers or nonretired noncertificated employees;
- (2) Post the vacancy for at least one month;
- (3) Have not offered early retirement incentives for either of the previous two years;
- (4) Solicit applications through the local newspaper, other media, or teacher education programs;
- (5) Determine there is an insufficient number of eligible applicants for the advertised position; and
- (6) Declare a critical shortage of certificated teachers or noncertificated employees that is active for one year.

5. Any person hired pursuant to this section shall be included in the State Directory of New Hires for purposes of income and eligibility verification pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 1320b-7."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Black (7), **House Amendment No. 1** was adopted.

Representative Dinkins offered **House Amendment No. 2**.

*House Amendment No. 2*

AMEND House Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 811, Page 1, Section A, Line 2, by inserting after all of said line the following:

"169.070. 1. The retirement allowance of a member whose age at retirement is sixty years or more and whose creditable service is five years or more, or whose sum of age and creditable service equals eighty years or more, or who has attained age fifty-five and whose creditable service is twenty-five years or more or whose creditable service is thirty years or more regardless of age, may be the sum of the following items, not to exceed one hundred percent of the member's final average salary:

- (1) Two and five-tenths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service;
- (2) Six-tenths of the amount payable for a year of membership service for each year of prior service not exceeding thirty years.

In lieu of the retirement allowance otherwise provided in subdivisions (1) and (2) of this subsection, a member may elect to receive a retirement allowance of:

(3) Two and four-tenths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service, if the member's creditable service is twenty-nine years or more but less than thirty years, and the member has not attained age fifty-five;

(4) Two and thirty-five-hundredths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service, if the member's creditable service is twenty-eight years or more but less than twenty-nine years, and the member has not attained age fifty-five;

(5) Two and three-tenths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service, if the member's creditable service is twenty-seven years or more but less than twenty-eight years, and the member has not attained age fifty-five;

(6) Two and twenty-five-hundredths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service, if the member's creditable service is twenty-six years or more but less than twenty-seven years, and the member has not attained age fifty-five;

(7) Two and two-tenths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service, if the member's creditable service is twenty-five years or more but less than twenty-six years, and the member has not attained age fifty-five;

(8) [~~Between July 1, 2001, and July 1, 2014,~~] Two and fifty-five hundredths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service, if the member's creditable service is [~~thirty-one~~] **thirty-two** years or more regardless of age.

2. In lieu of the retirement allowance provided in subsection 1 of this section, a member whose age is sixty years or more on September 28, 1975, may elect to have the member's retirement allowance calculated as a sum of the following items:

(1) Sixty cents plus one and five-tenths percent of the member's final average salary for each year of membership service;

(2) Six-tenths of the amount payable for a year of membership service for each year of prior service not exceeding thirty years;

(3) Three-fourths of one percent of the sum of subdivisions (1) and (2) of this subsection for each month of attained age in excess of sixty years but not in excess of age sixty-five.

3. (1) In lieu of the retirement allowance provided either in subsection 1 or 2 of this section, collectively called "option 1", a member whose creditable service is twenty-five years or more or who has attained the age of fifty-five with five or more years of creditable service may elect in the member's application for retirement to receive the actuarial equivalent of the member's retirement allowance in reduced monthly payments for life during retirement with the provision that:

Option 2. Upon the member's death the reduced retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person as has an insurable interest in the life of the member as the member shall have nominated in the member's election of the option, and provided further that if the person so nominated dies before the retired member, the retirement allowance will be increased to the amount the retired member would be receiving had the retired member elected option 1;

OR

Option 3. Upon the death of the member three-fourths of the reduced retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person as has an insurable interest in the life of the member and as the member shall have nominated in an election of the option, and provided further that if the person so nominated dies before the retired member, the retirement allowance will be increased to the amount the retired member would be receiving had the member elected option 1;

OR

Option 4. Upon the death of the member one-half of the reduced retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life of, and paid to, such person as has an insurable interest in the life of the member and as the member shall have nominated in an election of the option, and provided further that if the person so nominated dies before the retired member, the retirement allowance shall be increased to the amount the retired member would be receiving had the member elected option 1;

OR

Option 5. Upon the death of the member prior to the member having received one hundred twenty monthly payments of the member's reduced allowance, the remainder of the one hundred twenty monthly payments of the reduced allowance shall be paid to such beneficiary as the member shall have nominated in the member's election of the option or in a subsequent nomination. If there is no beneficiary so nominated who survives the member for the remainder of the one hundred twenty monthly payments, the total of the remainder of such one hundred twenty

monthly payments shall be paid to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the last person, in that order of precedence, to receive a monthly allowance in a lump sum payment. If the total of the one hundred twenty payments paid to the retired individual and the beneficiary of the retired individual is less than the total of the member's accumulated contributions, the difference shall be paid to the beneficiary in a lump sum;

OR

Option 6. Upon the death of the member prior to the member having received sixty monthly payments of the member's reduced allowance, the remainder of the sixty monthly payments of the reduced allowance shall be paid to such beneficiary as the member shall have nominated in the member's election of the option or in a subsequent nomination. If there is no beneficiary so nominated who survives the member for the remainder of the sixty monthly payments, the total of the remainder of such sixty monthly payments shall be paid to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the last person, in that order of precedence, to receive a monthly allowance in a lump sum payment. If the total of the sixty payments paid to the retired individual and the beneficiary of the retired individual is less than the total of the member's accumulated contributions, the difference shall be paid to the beneficiary in a lump sum.

(2) The election of an option may be made only in the application for retirement and such application must be filed prior to the date on which the retirement of the member is to be effective. If either the member or the person nominated to receive the survivorship payments dies before the effective date of retirement, the option shall not be effective, provided that:

(a) If the member or a person retired on disability retirement dies after acquiring twenty-five or more years of creditable service or after attaining the age of fifty-five years and acquiring five or more years of creditable service and before retirement, except retirement with disability benefits, and the person named by the member as the member's beneficiary has an insurable interest in the life of the deceased member, the designated beneficiary may elect to receive either survivorship benefits under option 2 or a payment of the accumulated contributions of the member. If survivorship benefits under option 2 are elected and the member at the time of death would have been eligible to receive an actuarial equivalent of the member's retirement allowance, the designated beneficiary may further elect to defer the option 2 payments until the date the member would have been eligible to receive the retirement allowance provided in subsection 1 or 2 of this section;

(b) If the member or a person retired on disability retirement dies before attaining age fifty-five but after acquiring five but fewer than twenty-five years of creditable service, and the person named as the member's beneficiary has an insurable interest in the life of the deceased member, the designated beneficiary may elect to receive either a payment of the member's accumulated contributions, or survivorship benefits under option 2 to begin on the date the member would first have been eligible to receive an actuarial equivalent of the member's retirement allowance, or to begin on the date the member would first have been eligible to receive the retirement allowance provided in subsection 1 or 2 of this section.

4. If the total of the retirement or disability allowance paid to an individual before the death of the individual is less than the accumulated contributions at the time of retirement, the difference shall be paid to the beneficiary of the individual, or to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the individual in that order of precedence. If an optional benefit as provided in option 2, 3 or 4 in subsection 3 of this section had been elected, and the beneficiary dies after receiving the optional benefit, and if the total retirement allowance paid to the retired individual and the beneficiary of the retired individual is less than the total of the contributions, the difference shall be paid to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the beneficiary, in that order of precedence, unless the retired individual designates a different recipient with the board at or after retirement.

5. If a member dies and his or her financial institution is unable to accept the final payment or payments due to the member, the final payment or payments shall be paid to the beneficiary of the member or, if there is no beneficiary, to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the member, in that order of precedence, unless otherwise stated. If the beneficiary of a deceased member dies and his or her financial institution is unable to accept the final payment or payments, the final payment or payments shall be paid to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the member, in that order of precedence, unless otherwise stated.

6. If a member dies before receiving a retirement allowance, the member's accumulated contributions at the time of the death of the member shall be paid to the beneficiary of the member or, if there is no beneficiary, to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or to the estate of the

member, in that order of precedence; except that, no such payment shall be made if the beneficiary elects option 2 in subsection 3 of this section, unless the beneficiary dies before having received benefits pursuant to that subsection equal to the accumulated contributions of the member, in which case the amount of accumulated contributions in excess of the total benefits paid pursuant to that subsection shall be paid to the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the beneficiary, in that order of precedence.

7. If a member ceases to be a public school employee as herein defined and certifies to the board of trustees that such cessation is permanent, or if the membership of the person is otherwise terminated, the member shall be paid the member's accumulated contributions with interest.

8. Notwithstanding any provisions of sections 169.010 to 169.141 to the contrary, if a member ceases to be a public school employee after acquiring five or more years of membership service in Missouri, the member may at the option of the member leave the member's contributions with the retirement system and claim a retirement allowance any time after reaching the minimum age for voluntary retirement. When the member's claim is presented to the board, the member shall be granted an allowance as provided in sections 169.010 to 169.141 on the basis of the member's age, years of service, and the provisions of the law in effect at the time the member requests the member's retirement to become effective.

9. The retirement allowance of a member retired because of disability shall be nine-tenths of the allowance to which the member's creditable service would entitle the member if the member's age were sixty, or fifty percent of one-twelfth of the annual salary rate used in determining the member's contributions during the last school year for which the member received a year of creditable service immediately prior to the member's disability, whichever is greater, except that no such allowance shall exceed the retirement allowance to which the member would have been entitled upon retirement at age sixty if the member had continued to teach from the date of disability until age sixty at the same salary rate.

10. Notwithstanding any provisions of sections 169.010 to 169.141 to the contrary, from October 13, 1961, the contribution rate pursuant to sections 169.010 to 169.141 shall be multiplied by the factor of two-thirds for any member of the system for whom federal Old Age and Survivors Insurance tax is paid from state or local tax funds on account of the member's employment entitling the person to membership in the system. The monetary benefits for a member who elected not to exercise an option to pay into the system a retroactive contribution of four percent on that part of the member's annual salary rate which was in excess of four thousand eight hundred dollars but not in excess of eight thousand four hundred dollars for each year of employment in a position covered by this system between July 1, 1957, and July 1, 1961, as provided in subsection 10 of this section as it appears in RSMo, 1969, shall be the sum of:

(1) For years of service prior to July 1, 1946, six-tenths of the full amount payable for years of membership service;

(2) For years of membership service after July 1, 1946, in which the full contribution rate was paid, full benefits under the formula in effect at the time of the member's retirement;

(3) For years of membership service after July 1, 1957, and prior to July 1, 1961, the benefits provided in this section as it appears in RSMo, 1959; except that if the member has at least thirty years of creditable service at retirement the member shall receive the benefit payable pursuant to that section as though the member's age were sixty-five at retirement;

(4) For years of membership service after July 1, 1961, in which the two-thirds contribution rate was paid, two-thirds of the benefits under the formula in effect at the time of the member's retirement.

11. The monetary benefits for each other member for whom federal Old Age and Survivors Insurance tax is or was paid at any time from state or local funds on account of the member's employment entitling the member to membership in the system shall be the sum of:

(1) For years of service prior to July 1, 1946, six-tenths of the full amount payable for years of membership service;

(2) For years of membership service after July 1, 1946, in which the full contribution rate was paid, full benefits under the formula in effect at the time of the member's retirement;

(3) For years of membership service after July 1, 1957, in which the two-thirds contribution rate was paid, two-thirds of the benefits under the formula in effect at the time of the member's retirement.

12. Any retired member of the system who was retired prior to September 1, 1972, or beneficiary receiving payments under option 1 or option 2 of subsection 3 of this section, as such option existed prior to September 1, 1972, will be eligible to receive an increase in the retirement allowance of the member of two percent for each year, or major fraction of more than one-half of a year, which the retired member has been retired prior to July 1, 1975. This increased amount shall be payable commencing with January, 1976, and shall thereafter be referred to as the

member's retirement allowance. The increase provided for in this subsection shall not affect the retired member's eligibility for compensation provided for in section ~~[169.580 or]~~ 169.585, nor shall the amount being paid pursuant to these sections be reduced because of any increases provided for in this section.

13. If the board of trustees determines that the cost of living, as measured by generally accepted standards, increases two percent or more in the preceding fiscal year, the board shall increase the retirement allowances which the retired members or beneficiaries are receiving by two percent of the amount being received by the retired member or the beneficiary at the time the annual increase is granted by the board with the provision that the increases provided for in this subsection shall not become effective until the fourth January first following the member's retirement or January 1, 1977, whichever later occurs, or in the case of any member retiring on or after July 1, 2000, the increase provided for in this subsection shall not become effective until the third January first following the member's retirement, or in the case of any member retiring on or after July 1, 2001, the increase provided for in this subsection shall not become effective until the second January first following the member's retirement. Commencing with January 1, 1992, if the board of trustees determines that the cost of living has increased five percent or more in the preceding fiscal year, the board shall increase the retirement allowances by five percent. The total of the increases granted to a retired member or the beneficiary after December 31, 1976, may not exceed eighty percent of the retirement allowance established at retirement or as previously adjusted by other subsections. If the cost of living increases less than five percent, the board of trustees may determine the percentage of increase to be made in retirement allowances, but at no time can the increase exceed five percent per year. If the cost of living decreases in a fiscal year, there will be no increase in allowances for retired members on the following January first.

14. The board of trustees may reduce the amounts which have been granted as increases to a member pursuant to subsection 13 of this section if the cost of living, as determined by the board and as measured by generally accepted standards, is less than the cost of living was at the time of the first increase granted to the member; except that, the reductions shall not exceed the amount of increases which have been made to the member's allowance after December 31, 1976.

15. Any application for retirement shall include a sworn statement by the member certifying that the spouse of the member at the time the application was completed was aware of the application and the plan of retirement elected in the application.

16. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any person retired prior to September 28, 1983, who is receiving a reduced retirement allowance under option 1 or option 2 of subsection 3 of this section, as such option existed prior to September 28, 1983, and whose beneficiary nominated to receive continued retirement allowance payments under the elected option dies or has died, shall upon application to the board of trustees have his or her retirement allowance increased to the amount he or she would have been receiving had the option not been elected, actuarially adjusted to recognize any excessive benefits which would have been paid to him or her up to the time of application.

17. Benefits paid pursuant to the provisions of the public school retirement system of Missouri shall not exceed the limitations of Section 415 of Title 26 of the United States Code except as provided pursuant to this subsection. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the board of trustees may establish a benefit plan pursuant to Section 415(m) of Title 26 of the United States Code. Such plan shall be created solely for the purpose described in Section 415(m)(3)(A) of Title 26 of the United States Code. The board of trustees may promulgate regulations necessary to implement the provisions of this subsection and to create and administer such benefit plan.

18. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, any person retired before, on, or after May 26, 1994, shall be made, constituted, appointed and employed by the board as a special consultant on the matters of education, retirement and aging, and upon request shall give written or oral opinions to the board in response to such requests. As compensation for such duties the person shall receive an amount based on the person's years of service so that the total amount received pursuant to sections 169.010 to 169.141 shall be at least the minimum amounts specified in subdivisions (1) to (4) of this subsection. In determining the minimum amount to be received, the amounts in subdivisions (3) and (4) of this subsection shall be adjusted in accordance with the actuarial adjustment, if any, that was applied to the person's retirement allowance. In determining the minimum amount to be received, beginning September 1, 1996, the amounts in subdivisions (1) and (2) of this subsection shall be adjusted in accordance with the actuarial adjustment, if any, that was applied to the person's retirement allowance due to election of an optional form of retirement having a continued monthly payment after the person's death. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, no person retired before, on, or after May 26, 1994, and no beneficiary of such a person, shall receive a retirement benefit pursuant to sections 169.010 to 169.141 based on the person's years of service less than the following amounts:

- (1) Thirty or more years of service, one thousand two hundred dollars;
- (2) At least twenty-five years but less than thirty years, one thousand dollars;
- (3) At least twenty years but less than twenty-five years, eight hundred dollars;
- (4) At least fifteen years but less than twenty years, six hundred dollars.

19. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law to the contrary, any person retired prior to May 26, 1994, and any designated beneficiary of such a retired member who was deceased prior to July 1, 1999, shall be made, constituted, appointed and employed by the board as a special consultant on the matters of education, retirement or aging and upon request shall give written or oral opinions to the board in response to such requests. Beginning September 1, 1996, as compensation for such service, the member shall have added, pursuant to this subsection, to the member's monthly annuity as provided by this section a dollar amount equal to the lesser of sixty dollars or the product of two dollars multiplied by the member's number of years of creditable service. Beginning September 1, 1999, the designated beneficiary of the deceased member shall as compensation for such service have added, pursuant to this subsection, to the monthly annuity as provided by this section a dollar amount equal to the lesser of sixty dollars or the product of two dollars multiplied by the member's number of years of creditable service. The total compensation provided by this section including the compensation provided by this subsection shall be used in calculating any future cost-of-living adjustments provided by subsection 13 of this section.

20. Any member who has retired prior to July 1, 1998, and the designated beneficiary of a deceased retired member shall be made, constituted, appointed and employed by the board as a special consultant on the matters of education, retirement and aging, and upon request shall give written or oral opinions to the board in response to such requests. As compensation for such duties the person shall receive a payment equivalent to eight and seven-tenths percent of the previous month's benefit, which shall be added to the member's or beneficiary's monthly annuity and which shall not be subject to the provisions of subsections 13 and 14 of this section for the purposes of the limit on the total amount of increases which may be received.

21. Any member who has retired shall be made, constituted, appointed and employed by the board as a special consultant on the matters of education, retirement and aging, and upon request shall give written or oral opinions to the board in response to such request. As compensation for such duties, the beneficiary of the retired member, or, if there is no beneficiary, the surviving spouse, surviving children in equal shares, surviving parents in equal shares, or estate of the retired member, in that order of precedence, shall receive as a part of compensation for these duties a death benefit of five thousand dollars.

22. Any member who has retired prior to July 1, 1999, and the designated beneficiary of a retired member who was deceased prior to July 1, 1999, shall be made, constituted, appointed and employed by the board as a special consultant on the matters of education, retirement and aging, and upon request shall give written or oral opinions to the board in response to such requests. As compensation for such duties, the person shall have added, pursuant to this subsection, to the monthly annuity as provided by this section a dollar amount equal to five dollars times the member's number of years of creditable service.

23. Any member who has retired prior to July 1, 2000, and the designated beneficiary of a deceased retired member shall be made, constituted, appointed and employed by the board as a special consultant on the matters of education, retirement and aging, and upon request shall give written or oral opinions to the board in response to such requests. As compensation for such duties, the person shall receive a payment equivalent to three and five-tenths percent of the previous month's benefit, which shall be added to the member or beneficiary's monthly annuity and which shall not be subject to the provisions of subsections 13 and 14 of this section for the purposes of the limit on the total amount of increases which may be received.

24. Any member who has retired prior to July 1, 2001, and the designated beneficiary of a deceased retired member shall be made, constituted, appointed and employed by the board as a special consultant on the matters of education, retirement and aging, and upon request shall give written or oral opinions to the board in response to such requests. As compensation for such duties, the person shall receive a dollar amount equal to three dollars times the member's number of years of creditable service, which shall be added to the member's or beneficiary's monthly annuity and which shall not be subject to the provisions of subsections 13 and 14 of this section for the purposes of the limit on the total amount of increases which may be received."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Dinkins, **House Amendment No. 2** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Black (7), **HCS HB 811, as amended**, was adopted.

On motion of Representative Black (7), **HCS HB 811, as amended**, was ordered perfected and printed.

**PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS - INFORMAL**

**HCS HB 583**, relating to audits of state entities, was taken up by Representative Riggs.

On motion of Representative Riggs, the title of **HCS HB 583** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Riggs, **HCS HB 583** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Riggs, **HCS HB 583** was ordered perfected and printed.

**HOUSE RESOLUTIONS**

**HR 173**, relating to employees of the Missouri House of Representatives, was taken up by Representative Chipman.

On motion of Representative Chipman, **HR 173** was adopted by the following vote:

AYES: 152

Adams	Aldridge	Anderson	Andrews	Appelbaum
Atchison	Aune	Baker	Bangert	Baringer
Barnes	Basye	Billington	Black 137	Black 7
Bland Manlove	Boggs	Bromley	Brown 16	Brown 27
Brown 70	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Burnett	Burton
Busick	Butz	Chipman	Christofanelli	Coleman 32
Coleman 97	Collins	Cook	Copeland	Cupps
Davidson	Davis	Deaton	DeGroot	Derges
Dinkins	Dogan	Doll	Eggleston	Ellebracht
Evans	Falkner	Fishel	Fitzwater	Fogle
Francis	Gray	Gregory 51	Gregory 96	Grier
Griesheimer	Griffith	Gunby	Haden	Haffner
Hannegan	Hardwick	Henderson	Hicks	Hill
Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Ingle	Johnson
Kalberloh	Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Kidd	Lewis 25
Lewis 6	Lovasco	Mackey	Mayhew	McCreery
McGaugh	McGill	Merideth	Morse	Mosley
Murphy	Nurrenbern	O'Donnell	Owen	Patterson
Perkins	Person	Phifer	Pietzman	Plocher
Pollitt 52	Pollock 123	Porter	Pouche	Price IV
Proudie	Quade	Railsback	Reedy	Richey
Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Roden	Roeber
Rogers	Rone	Rowland	Ruth	Sander
Sassmann	Sauls	Schnelting	Schroer	Schwadron
Seitz	Sharp 36	Sharpe 4	Shaul	Shields
Simmons	Smith 155	Smith 163	Smith 67	Stacy
Stephens 128	Stevens 46	Tate	Taylor 139	Taylor 48
Terry	Thomas	Thompson	Toalson Reisch	Trent
Turnbaugh	Unsicker	Van Schoiack	Veit	Wallingford
Walsh 50	Walsh Moore 93	Weber	West	Windham
Young	Mr. Speaker			

NOES: 000

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 010

Bailey	Bosley	Clemens	Haley	Houx
Knight	McDaniel	Pike	Wiemann	Wright

VACANCIES: 001

**THIRD READING OF HOUSE BILLS**

**HB 52**, relating to firearms on public transportation systems, was taken up by Representative Schnelting.

Representative Plocher moved the previous question.

Which motion was adopted by the following vote:

AYES: 107

Andrews	Atchison	Bailey	Baker	Basye
Billington	Black 137	Black 7	Boggs	Bromley
Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Busick	Christofanelli
Coleman 32	Coleman 97	Cook	Copeland	Cupps
Davidson	Davis	Deaton	DeGroot	Derges
Dinkins	Dogan	Eggleston	Evans	Falkner
Fishel	Fitzwater	Francis	Gregory 51	Gregory 96
Grier	Griesheimer	Griffith	Haden	Haffner
Hannegan	Hardwick	Henderson	Hicks	Hill
Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Kalberloh	Kelley 127
Kelly 141	Knight	Lewis 6	Lovasco	Mayhew
McDaniel	McGaugh	McGirl	Morse	Murphy
O'Donnell	Owen	Patterson	Perkins	Pietzman
Plocher	Pollitt 52	Pollock 123	Porter	Pouche
Railsback	Reedy	Richey	Riggs	Riley
Roberts	Roden	Roeber	Rone	Ruth
Sander	Sassmann	Schnelting	Schroer	Schwadron
Seitz	Sharpe 4	Shaul	Shields	Simmons
Smith 155	Smith 163	Tate	Taylor 139	Taylor 48
Thomas	Thompson	Toalson Reisch	Trent	Van Schoiack
Veit	Wallingford	Walsh 50	West	Wiemann
Wright	Mr. Speaker			

NOES: 047

Adams	Aldridge	Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune
Bangert	Baringer	Barnes	Bosley	Brown 27
Brown 70	Burnett	Burton	Butz	Clemens
Collins	Doll	Ellebracht	Fogle	Gray
Gunby	Ingle	Johnson	Lewis 25	Mackey
McCreery	Merideth	Mosley	Nurrenbern	Person
Phifer	Price IV	Proudie	Quade	Rogers
Rowland	Sauls	Sharp 36	Smith 67	Stevens 46
Terry	Turnbaugh	Unsicker	Walsh Moore 93	Weber
Windham	Young			

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 008

Bland Manlove	Chipman	Haley	Houx	Kidd
Pike	Stacy	Stephens 128		

VACANCIES: 001

On motion of Representative Schnelting, **HB 52** was read the third time and passed by the following vote:

AYES: 124

Anderson	Andrews	Atchison	Bailey	Baker
Bangert	Baringer	Basye	Billington	Black 137
Black 7	Boggs	Bromley	Brown 16	Brown 70
Buchheit-Courtway	Burger	Burton	Busick	Butz
Chipman	Christofanelli	Coleman 32	Coleman 97	Cook
Copeland	Cupps	Davidson	Davis	Deaton
DeGroot	Derges	Dinkins	Dogan	Eggleston
Ellebracht	Evans	Falkner	Fishel	Fitzwater
Francis	Gregory 51	Gregory 96	Grier	Griesheimer
Griffith	Haden	Haffner	Hannegan	Hardwick
Henderson	Hicks	Hill	Hovis	Hudson
Hurlbert	Kalberloh	Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Kidd
Knight	Lewis 6	Lovasco	Mayhew	McCreery
McDaniel	McGaugh	McGirl	Morse	Murphy
O'Donnell	Owen	Patterson	Perkins	Pietzman
Plocher	Pollitt 52	Pollock 123	Porter	Pouche
Quade	Railsback	Reedy	Richey	Riggs
Riley	Roberts	Roden	Roeber	Rogers
Rone	Rowland	Ruth	Sander	Sassmann
Sauls	Schnelting	Schroer	Schwadron	Seitz
Sharpe 4	Shaul	Shields	Simmons	Smith 155
Smith 163	Stacy	Stephens 128	Tate	Taylor 139
Taylor 48	Thomas	Thompson	Toalson Reisch	Trent
Van Schoiack	Veit	Wallingford	Walsh 50	Walsh Moore 93
West	Wiemann	Wright	Mr. Speaker	

NOES: 032

Adams	Appelbaum	Aune	Barnes	Bland Manlove
Bosley	Brown 27	Burnett	Clemens	Collins
Doll	Fogle	Gray	Gunby	Ingle
Johnson	Lewis 25	Mackey	Merideth	Mosley
Nurrenbern	Person	Phifer	Price IV	Sharp 36
Smith 67	Stevens 46	Terry	Turnbaugh	Unsicker
Weber	Young			

PRESENT: 003

Aldridge	Proudie	Windham
----------	---------	---------

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 003

Haley                      Houx                      Pike

VACANCIES: 001

Representative Taylor (139) declared the bill passed.

**HB 249**, relating to advanced industrial manufacturing zones, was placed on the Informal Calendar.

**HB 578**, relating to biennial motor vehicle registrations, was taken up by Representative Bromley.

On motion of Representative Bromley, **HB 578** was read the third time and passed by the following vote:

AYES: 156

Adams	Aldridge	Anderson	Andrews	Appelbaum
Atchison	Aune	Bailey	Baker	Bangert
Baringer	Barnes	Basye	Billington	Black 137
Black 7	Bland Manlove	Boggs	Bosley	Bromley
Brown 16	Brown 27	Brown 70	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger
Burnett	Burton	Busick	Butz	Chipman
Christofanelli	Clemens	Coleman 32	Coleman 97	Collins
Cook	Copeland	Cupps	Davidson	Davis
Deaton	DeGroot	Derges	Dinkins	Dogan
Doll	Eggleston	Ellebracht	Evans	Falkner
Fishel	Fitzwater	Fogle	Gray	Gregory 51
Gregory 96	Grier	Griesheimer	Griffith	Gunby
Haden	Haffner	Hannegan	Hardwick	Henderson
Hicks	Hill	Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert
Ingle	Johnson	Kalberloh	Kelley 127	Kelly 141
Kidd	Knight	Lewis 25	Lewis 6	Lovasco
Mackey	Mayhew	McCreery	McGaugh	McGill
Merideth	Morse	Mosley	Murphy	Nurrenbern
O'Donnell	Owen	Patterson	Perkins	Person
Phifer	Pietzman	Plocher	Pollitt 52	Pollock 123
Porter	Pouche	Price IV	Proudie	Quade
Railsback	Reedy	Richey	Riggs	Riley
Roberts	Roden	Roerber	Rogers	Rone
Rowland	Ruth	Sander	Sassmann	Sauls
Schnelting	Schroer	Schwadron	Seitz	Sharp 36
Sharpe 4	Shaul	Shields	Simmons	Smith 155
Smith 163	Smith 67	Stacy	Stephens 128	Stevens 46
Tate	Taylor 139	Taylor 48	Terry	Thomas
Thompson	Toalson Reisch	Trent	Turnbaugh	Unsicker
Van Schojack	Veit	Wallingford	Walsh 50	Walsh Moore 93
Weber	West	Wiemann	Wright	Young
Mr. Speaker				

NOES: 001

McDaniel

PRESENT: 001

Windham

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 004

Francis

Haley

Houx

Pike

VACANCIES: 001

Representative Taylor (139) declared the bill passed.

### **REFERRAL OF HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS**

The following House Joint Resolutions were referred to the Committee indicated:

- HJR 31** - Ways and Means
- HJR 48** - Elections and Elected Officials

### **REFERRAL OF HOUSE BILLS**

The following House Bills were referred to the Committee indicated:

- HB 26** - Elections and Elected Officials
- HB 142** - Crime Prevention
- HB 166** - Crime Prevention
- HB 251** - Judiciary
- HB 279** - Special Committee on Small Business
- HB 309** - Rural Community Development
- HB 311** - Higher Education
- HB 314** - Emerging Issues
- HB 344** - Emerging Issues
- HB 396** - Public Safety
- HB 431** - Children and Families
- HB 489** - Special Committee on Small Business
- HB 490** - Transportation
- HB 511** - Downsizing State Government
- HB 562** - General Laws
- HB 587** - Economic Development
- HB 643** - Crime Prevention
- HB 645** - Agriculture Policy
- HB 647** - Rural Community Development
- HB 680** - Elections and Elected Officials
- HB 688** - Ways and Means
- HB 723** - General Laws
- HB 751** - Health and Mental Health Policy
- HB 758** - Judiciary
- HB 815** - Elections and Elected Officials

- HB 827** - Conservation and Natural Resources
- HB 841** - Rural Community Development
- HB 857** - Special Committee on Government Accountability
- HB 869** - Special Committee on Tourism
- HB 902** - Judiciary
- HB 906** - Rural Community Development
- HB 921** - Economic Development
- HB 939** - General Laws
- HB 989** - Health and Mental Health Policy
- HB 994** - General Laws
- HB 1027** - Judiciary
- HB 1075** - Health and Mental Health Policy
- HB 1094** - Local Government
- HB 1122** - Downsizing State Government
- HB 1150** - Transportation
- HB 1160** - Utilities
- HB 1166** - Conservation and Natural Resources
- HB 1179** - Crime Prevention
- HB 1206** - General Laws
- HB 1209** - Local Government
- HB 1217** - Transportation
- HB 1238** - Transportation
- HB 1249** - Public Safety
- HB 1254** - General Laws
- HB 1266** - Rural Community Development
- HB 1288** - Special Committee on Small Business
- HB 1291** - General Laws
- HB 1315** - Judiciary
- HB 1328** - Utilities
- HB 1333** - Crime Prevention
- HB 1334** - Utilities
- HB 1349** - Professional Registration and Licensing
- HB 1350** - Insurance
- HB 1355** - Transportation
- HB 1357** - Insurance
- HB 1383** - Higher Education
- HB 1403** - Transportation
- HB 1420** - Ways and Means

## **COMMITTEE REPORTS**

**Committee on Economic Development**, Chairman Grier reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Economic Development, to which was referred **HB 214**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute**, and pursuant to Rule 24(28)(c) be referred to the Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight by the following vote:

Ayes (7): Boggs, Cupps, Grier, Johnson, Riggs, Smith (155) and Trent

Noes (2): Barnes and Gunby

Absent (2): Baker and Deaton

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Economic Development, to which was referred **HB 649**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute**, and pursuant to Rule 24(28)(c) be referred to the Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight by the following vote:

Ayes (6): Boggs, Cupps, Grier, Riggs, Smith (155) and Trent

Noes (3): Barnes, Gunby and Johnson

Absent (2): Baker and Deaton

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Economic Development, to which was referred **HB 1095**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute**, and pursuant to Rule 24(28)(c) be referred to the Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight by the following vote:

Ayes (7): Baker, Boggs, Cupps, Deaton, Grier, Riggs and Smith (155)

Noes (3): Barnes, Gunby and Johnson

Absent (1): Trent

**Special Committee on Tourism**, Chairman Hudson reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tourism, to which was referred **HB 447**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass**, and pursuant to Rule 24(28)(a) be referred to the Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Barnes, Burnett, Hudson, Pike, Riggs, Sassmann, Seitz, Thomas and Weber

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Smith (155)

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tourism, to which was referred **HB 452**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass**, and pursuant to Rule 24(28)(a) be referred to the Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Barnes, Burnett, Hudson, Pike, Riggs, Sassmann, Seitz and Weber

Noes (1): Thomas

Absent (1): Smith (155)

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tourism, to which was referred **HB 1047**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass**, and pursuant to Rule 24(28)(a) be referred to the Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight by the following vote:

Ayes (7): Barnes, Burnett, Hudson, Pike, Riggs, Sassmann and Weber

Noes (2): Seitz and Thomas

Absent (1): Smith (155)

**Committee on Ways and Means**, Chairman Wallingford reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Ways and Means, to which was referred **HB 555**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute**, and pursuant to Rule 24(28)(b) be referred to the Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Coleman (32), Eggleston, Lovasco, Mayhew, McGirl, Riggs, Roden and Wallingford

Noes (3): Bland Manlove, Gunby and Weber

Absent (0)

**Committee on Legislative Review**, Chairman Houx reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Legislative Review, to which was referred **HB 432, with House Amendment No. 1 and House Amendment No. 2**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (6): Burnett, Houx, Kelly (141), McCreery, Veit, Wiemann

Noes (0)

Absent (3): Hicks, Shaul, Taylor (139)

**Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight**, Chairman Eggleston reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HJR 42**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **be returned to committee of origin as HJR 42** by the following vote:

Ayes (11): Bosley, Cupps, Dogan, Eggleston, Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (2): Fitzwater and Gregory (96)

Absent (1): McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 29**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (12): Bosley, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (0)

Absent (2): Cupps and McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 66**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (13): Bosley, Cupps, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (0)

Absent (1): McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS#2 HB 69**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (13): Bosley, Cupps, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (0)

Absent (1): McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HB 143**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (10): Dogan, Eggleston, Gregory (96), Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (2): Bosley and Fitzwater

Absent (2): Cupps and McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 394**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (11): Bosley, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (1): Gregory (96)

Absent (2): Cupps and McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 443**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (12): Bosley, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (0)

Absent (2): Cupps and McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 472**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Bosley, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, McGaugh, Patterson and Ruth

Noes (3): Ingle, Mackey and Phifer

Absent (2): Cupps and McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 738**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Cupps, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, McGaugh, Patterson and Ruth

Noes (4): Bosley, Ingle, Mackey and Phifer

Absent (1): McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HB 850**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Cupps, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, McGaugh, Patterson and Ruth

Noes (4): Bosley, Ingle, Mackey and Phifer

Absent (1): McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HBs 928 & 927**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (13): Bosley, Cupps, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (0)

Absent (1): McDaniel

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HB 991**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (13): Bosley, Cupps, Dogan, Eggleston, Fitzwater, Gregory (96), Hudson, Ingle, Mackey, McGaugh, Patterson, Phifer and Ruth

Noes (0)

Absent (1): McDaniel

**COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS**

March 8, 2021

Dana Rademan Miller  
Chief Clerk  
Missouri House of Representatives  
State Capitol, Room 310  
Jefferson City, MO 65101

Dear Ms. Miller:

Pursuant to RSMo. 21.880.1.7, I hereby appoint Representative Marlon Anderson to the Joint Committee on the Justice System.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact my office.

Sincerely,

/s/ Crystal Quade  
House Minority Leader  
132nd District

**COMMITTEE CHANGES**

March 8, 2021

Ms. Dana Rademan Miller  
Chief Clerk  
Missouri House of Representatives  
State Capitol, Room 310  
Jefferson City, MO 65101

Dear Ms. Miller:

I hereby make the following changes to the Joint Committee on the Justice System:

I hereby remove from the committee the following members:

Representative David Gregory, Vice-Chair  
Representative Shane Roden

I hereby appoint the following members to the committee:

Representative Shamed Dogan  
Representative David Evans  
Representative Andrew McDaniel

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact my office.

Sincerely,

/s/ Rob Vescovo  
Speaker of the House

March 8, 2021

Ms. Dana Rademan Miller  
Chief Clerk  
Missouri House of Representatives  
State Capitol, Room 310  
Jefferson City, MO 65101

Dear Ms. Miller:

I hereby make the following changes to the Special Committee on Government Oversight:

I hereby appoint the following members to the committee:

Representative Dottie Bailey  
Representative Keri Ingle  
Representative Hannah Kelly

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact my office.

Sincerely,

/s/ Rob Vescovo  
Speaker of the House

The following member's presence was noted: Haley.

### **ADJOURNMENT**

On motion of Representative Plocher, the House adjourned until 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, March 9, 2021.

### **COMMITTEE HEARINGS**

#### **AGRICULTURE POLICY**

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 8:30 AM, House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 594, HB 975, HB 1296

Executive session will be held: HB 693, HB 1125

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Added HB 1296.

AMENDED

#### **CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

Wednesday, March 10, 2021, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 33

Executive session will be held: HB 673

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### CONSENT AND HOUSE PROCEDURE

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 12:00 PM or upon adjournment, House Hearing Room 7.

Executive session will be held: HB 298, HB 404, HB 449, HB 640, HCS HB 676, HB 1053

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### CORRECTIONS AND PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 12:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 5.

Executive session will be held: HB 352, HB 469, HB 731, HB 1032, HB 1046, HB 318, HB 319, HB 549, HB 745

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Added HB 318, HB 319, HB 549 and HB 745.

AMENDED

#### ELECTIONS AND ELECTED OFFICIALS

Wednesday, March 10, 2021, 12:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 6.

Executive session will be held: HB 165, HB 196, HB 324, HB 423, HB 104, HB 381

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Added HB 381.

AMENDED

#### ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 37, HB 108, HB 442, HB 496, HB 639, HB 1314

Executive session will be held: HB 320, HB 494, HB 541, HB 1133, HB 1071

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### EMERGING ISSUES

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: SB 189, HB 407, HB 695, HB 1294, HB 1135, HB 1325

Executive session will be held: HB 407, HJR 53, HB 522, HB 825, HB 727, HB 1140, HB 846

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Wednesday, March 10, 2021, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 518, HB 734

Executive session will be held: HB 571

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### GENERAL LAWS

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 3.

Public hearing will be held: HJR 43, HJR 60, HJR 24

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### INSURANCE

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 12:00 PM or upon morning adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 1126, HB 1156

Executive session will be held: HB 1022

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### CORRECTED

#### LEGISLATIVE REVIEW

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 12:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 3.

Executive session will be held: HB 533, HB 152

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Thursday, March 11, 2021, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 445, HB 718, HB 807, HB 1048, HCR 47

Executive session will be held: HB 382, HB 563, HB 373

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Please note time change.

#### CORRECTED

#### PENSIONS

Wednesday, March 10, 2021, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HB 1229

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### PUBLIC SAFETY

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 9:00 AM, House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HB 874, HB 1090

Executive session will be held: HB 286, HB 290, HB 291, HB 553

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

#### SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON CRIMINAL JUSTICE

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HB 38, HB 460, HB 750, HB 1363

Executive session will be held: HB 521

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON LITIGATION REFORM

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 12:00 PM or upon morning recess (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: SS#2 SCS SBs 51 & 42, HB 997, HB 1064, HB 1119, HB 1304

Executive session will be held: HB 347

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON REDISTRICTING

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 9:00 AM, House Hearing Room 6.

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Organizational meeting.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON SMALL BUSINESS

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 914, HB 1023, HB 931, HB 1408

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Removed HB 779.

AMENDED

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON TOURISM

Wednesday, March 10, 2021, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HB 869

Executive session will be held: HB 1200, HB 869

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

TRANSPORTATION

Wednesday, March 10, 2021, 5:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 1270, HB 389, HB 1111, HB 544, HB 930, HB 1367, HB 1437

Executive session will be held: HB 626, HB 662, HB 605, HB 606

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

UTILITIES

Wednesday, March 10, 2021, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HB 397, HB 524, HB 692

Executive session will be held: HB 261

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Please note: HB 397 public hearing only.

AMENDED

VETERANS

Tuesday, March 9, 2021, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 5.

Executive session will be held: HB 390

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Presentation by Alex Tuttle, Legislative Liaison for the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services and Lyndall Fraker, Medical Marijuana Section Director for the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services.

*Please note additional procedures will be in place due to the COVID-19 pandemic. All entrants to the capitol building may be required to submit to screening questions and physical screening. Members of the public must enter the building using the south entrance. Public seating in committees will be socially distanced and therefore limited. Committee hearings will be streamed. Links may be found at <https://www.house.mo.gov>.*

**HOUSE CALENDAR**

THIRTY-SIXTH DAY, TUESDAY, MARCH 9, 2021

**HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS FOR PERFECTION**

HJR 6 - Schnelting

HCS HJRs 20, 2, 9 & 27 - Henderson

HCS HJR 22 - Eggleston

HCS HJR 35 - Griesheimer

HCS HJRs 23 & 38 - Black (137)

**HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION - REVISION**

HCS HRB 1 - Shaul

**HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION**

HB 894 - Riggs

HB 513, (Legislative Review 2/24/21) - Smith (155)

HB 152, (Legislative Review 2/24/21) - Rone

HB 474 - Trent

HCS HB 942 - Haffner

HCS HB 785 - Hicks

HB 991 - Smith (163)

HCS HB 543 - Pollitt (52)

HB 212 - Hill

HCS HB 252 - Fishel

HB 297 - Wallingford

HB 370 - Christofanelli

HB 488 - Hicks

HB 500 - Schroer

HB 570 - Basye  
HB 708 - Trent  
HCS HB 876 - Dogan  
HCS HB 738 - Rone  
HB 850 - Wiemann  
HCS HB 472 - Griesheimer  
HCS#2 HB 69 - Billington  
HB 478 - Christofanelli

**HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION - INFORMAL**

HB 533, (Legislative Review 3/2/21) - Knight  
HB 554 - Eggleston  
HB 60 - Schnelting  
HCS HB 292 - Roberts  
HB 387 - Bailey  
HCS HB 495 - Ruth  
HS HB 432 - Kelly (141)  
HCS HB 529 - Haffner  
HCS HB 556 - Eggleston  
HCS HB 577 - Riley  
HB 767 - Roden  
HB 92 - Taylor (139)  
HB 151 - Shields  
HB 158 - Hudson  
HB 177 - Ellebracht  
HB 201 - McGirl  
HB 202 - McGirl  
HB 295 - Roberts  
HCS HB 306 - Griesheimer  
HB 380 - Walsh (50)  
HB 491 - Grier  
HB 678 - Eggleston  
HCS HB 782 - Trent  
HB 920 - Baker  
HB 948 - Francis  
HCS HB 307 - Griesheimer  
HB 316 - Toalson Reisch  
HB 333 - Simmons  
HCS HB 384 - Veit  
HB 530 - Evans  
HCS HB 592 - Fitzwater  
HCS HB 733 - Patterson

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD READING**

HCS HCRs 4 & 5 - Proudie

**HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING**

HCS#2 HB 75, E.C. - Murphy  
HB 138 - Pietzman  
HB 257 - Evans

**HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING - INFORMAL**

HB 249, (Fiscal Review 3/4/21) - Ruth

**HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING - CONSENT**

HCS HB 228, E.C. - Basye  
HB 273 - Hannegan  
HB 687 - Riley  
HB 585 - Houx  
HB 76 - Murphy

**ACTIONS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IV, SECTION 27**

HCS HB 2001 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2002 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2003 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2004 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2005 - Smith (163)  
CCS SS SCS HS HCS HB 2006 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2007 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2008 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2009 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2010 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2011 - Smith (163)  
CCS SCS HS HCS HB 2012 - Smith (163)  
SCS HCS HB 2013 - Smith (163)  
HCS HB 2017 - Smith (163)  
HCS HB 2018 - Smith (163)  
HCS HB 2019 - Smith (163)  
HCS HB 14, (2020, 2nd Extra) - Smith (163)